
 

 
23 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular lk;Short Meeting 
Monday, 23 April 2012, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
      

Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and responsibilities 
with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance and operations of 
the City. 
 



 

 
23 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 9 April 2012 Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 

 
VII. RECOGNITIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

 
a) Leadership Vance Class of 2012 (Rachel Hedrick) 
b) Week of the Young Child Presentation (Carolyn Paylor) 
c) Comprehensive Transportation Plan (Mike Ciriello) 
 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

a)  Consideration of CM 12-06, CDBG Infrastructure Hook-Up Grant. (See Notebook Tab 2) 
 
 ● Public Hearing 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the Council 
must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  The 
sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and identify the Agenda Item 
about which you wish to speak on the sign up sheet.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3  
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-35, Awarding Audit Contract for FY 11-12.  
(CAF 12-56)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
 Resolution 12-35 

 
b)  Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Months 

of March 2011, April 2011, May 2011 and June 2011.  (CAF 12-12)  [See Notebook Tab 4]  
 

c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-11, Endorsing the Vance County Hazard 
Mitigation Plan.  (CAF 12-30)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

 
   Resolution 12-11 
 

d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-37, Authorizing an Informal Bid Award for Birch 
Circle Storm Drain Repair to Harris Equipment Company in the Amount of $39,640.  (CAF 12-A-
28)  [See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
 ● Resolution 12-37 
 



 

 
23 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 3 of 4 
 

e) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-A-19, Amending Sections of Zoning Codes for 
the City of Henderson to Provide for Bed & Breakfast Homes, and Ordinance 12-B-19, 
Amending Sections of Zoning Codes for the City of Henderson to Provide for Bed & 
Breakfast Inns. (CAF 12-A-33) [See Notebook Tab 7]  

 
   Ordinance 12-A-19 
 Ordinance 12-B-19 

 
 f)  Consideration of Approval of 1) Ordinance 12-32, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 41, 

Amending CIP Sewer Fund 44: 2) Ordinance 12-33, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 42, 
Amending the CIP Powell Bill Fund 42 and Powell Bill Fund 11:  3) Ordinance 12-34, FY 
11-12 Budget Amendment # 43, Amending CIP General Fund 41, General Fund 10 and 
Elmwood Cemetery Fund 5: 4) Ordinance 12-31, FY11-12 Budget Amendment #44, 
Amending the Regional Water Fund and the 2011 Revenue Refunding Bond Account:  5) 
Ordinance 12-35, FY 12-12 Budget Amendment #45, Amending Capital Reserves Utilities 
Fund 79 and Rate Stabilization Fund 79. (CAF 12-55)  [See Notebook Tab 8] 

 
 Ordinance 12-32 
 Ordinance 12-33 
 Ordinance 12-34 
 Ordinance 12-31 
 Ordinance 12-35 

 
g) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-38, Awarding a Contract with ECS Carolinas, 

LLP Relative to Subsurface Exploration and Geotechnical Engineering Services Needed in 
Conjunction with Improvements at the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility. (CAF 12-59)  
[See Notebook Tab 9] 

 
 Resolution 12-38 
 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen Comment 
Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this Agenda.3 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to 
offer comments on matters of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public 
comment guidelines prior to addressing the City Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, 
may limit comments to three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to 
address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue 
oriented.  Except for the public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the 
public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  



 

 
23 April 2012 Agenda 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
XII. REPORTS 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager  
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Notes and Schedule Update [See Notebook Tab 10] 
ii. Code Compliance Department Report 

iii. Child Abuse Month Proclamation 
iv. Public Health Month 
v. Week of the Young Child 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

                                                                                                                                                                         
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council 
Committee or agency and may, if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to 
specific individuals are to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court 
system will not be permitted; and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter 
brought up during the public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item 
on a future meeting agenda. 
 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

9 April 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 5 

City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Regular Meeting 

9 April 2012 

 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda G. Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, 
Lonnie Davis, Jr., and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier, Finance Director Katherine C. Brafford, Planning 
Director Erris Dunston, Henderson Water Reclamation Facility Director Tom Spain and Captain 
Marcus Barrow.  
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 9 April 2012 Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to order by Mayor 
James D. O’Geary at 6:00 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, and 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 
 
Mayor O’Geary began the meeting by saying it was good to have Council Members Peace-
Jenkins and Davis back and he welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in the Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda as presented.  City Clerk 
McCrackin said a Closed Session would be added in accordance with G.S. §143-318.11(1)(3) for 
two (2) Attorney-Client matters.  Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked for a personnel matter to 
be added to the Closed Session, in accordance with G.S. §143-318.11(1)(6).  Council Member 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

9 April 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 5 

Inscoe moved to accept the Agenda as adjusted.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and 
unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes. Council Member 
Rainey moved the approval of the following minutes:  26 March Short Regular meeting and 26 
March 2012 Work Session.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and unanimously 
approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to address 
Council regarding agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Adopting Vance County’s Language Access Plan.  (Reference: CAF: 12-485; Resolution 12-
26) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning Director Erris Dunston to review this issue.  Ms. Dunston 
explained to be in compliance with Federal regulations, this Plan is a requirement to continue 
participating in Community Block Grant programs.  She stated the City has received permission 
from Vance County Manager Jerry Ayscue to adopt the Vance County Language Access Plan 
and the County will provide translators when needed for oral and/or written translation of all 
vital documents required to provide housing rehabilitation services to limited English proficient 
citizens.   
 
Council Member Rainey asked if this Plan required additional staff on the part of the City.  Ms. 
Dunston responded no.  If interpretation is needed, the County will provide translators with 
Spanish being the dominate language need. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked if the term citizen, referred to anyone or only those holding US 
citizenship. Ms. Dunston responded any applicant would need to meet the requirements of each 
grant and City Attorney Zollicoffer concurred. 
 
Council Member Kearney commented that he was comfortable with the Plan as presented. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 

 
Council Member Kearney moved the approval of Resolution 12-26, Adopting Vance County’s 
Language Access Plan. Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Kearney, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Davis and Daye.  NO:  
Coffey.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None.  (See Resolution Book 2, p. 301)   



 

 
Minute Book 42 

9 April 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 5 

Adopting Vance County’s Fair Housing Plan.    (Reference:  CAF 12-47; Resolution 12-25) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning Director Erris Dunston to come forward to explain this 
issue.  Ms. Dunston stated this plan is required by State and Federal government for continued 
participation in any Community Block Grant Programs.  She said Vance County Manager Jerry 
Ayscue granted permission for the City to adopt the Vance County Fair Housing Plan.  This Plan 
requires quarterly reporting and any complaints regarding Fair Housing will be directed to the 
County Administrator of the Fair Housing Plan, which is the County Manager or his designee. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if any reports had been generated as required by the Plan for 
March.  Ms. Dunston said once the Plan is accepted she will receive reports which will 
ultimately come from the Council of Government (COG) as they have been designated as the 
Plan Administrator.  City Manager Griffin said it was recommended by the COG and State 
officials that the County and City share one plan due to limited staffing.  Mr. Kearney suggested 
initiative be taken by the City to ensure the Plan is carried out as written.   
 
There was no further discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Council Member Coffey moved the approval of Resolution 12-25, Adopting Vance County’s 
Fair Housing Plan. Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Davis, Daye and Kearney 
NO: None: ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT: None.   (See Resolution Book 2, p 299) 
  
Grant Application for Funding through the US Department of Justice BJA Justice 
Assistance Grant Program for 2012. Reference: CAF 12-45; Resolution 12-34) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Captain Marcus Barrow to provide Council the details of this issue.  
Captain Barrow stated this is a yearly request to the Department of Justice.  This year, the 
requested amount is $17,120 with $10,272 (60%) going to fund overtime pay for officers of the 
Henderson Police Department and the remaining $6,848 (40%) will go to the Vance County 
Sheriff’s Department as required by the grant.  The grant does not require a cash grant match.  
Captain Barrow said the anticipated date of acceptance is 1 July 2012 and the grant term is from 
1 October 2012 to 30 September 2013. 
  
Council Member Coffey asked if the application had already been submitted.  Captain Barrow 
responded the pre-application had been completed and City Manager Griffin reminded Council 
that they had recently ratified submission of the pre-application. 
 
There was no other discussion, and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of Resolution 12-34, Grant Application for 
Funding through the US Department of Justice BJA Justice Assistance Grant Program for 2012. 
Motion seconded by Council Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Davis, Daye, Kearney and Coffey.   NO: None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None.  (See Resolution Book 2, p. 317) 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

9 April 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
Authorizing the Adoption of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management 
Plan.   (Reference:  CAF 12-43; Resolution 12-31) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Assistant City Manager Frank Frazier to update Council on this 
issue.  Assistant City Manager Frazier reminded Council that one of the requirements for 
receiving this State Revolving Fund Grant/Loan is to prepare and adopt an asset management 
plan.  The plan combines the capital improvements plan, mapping of the existing sewer system 
and a listing of assets associated with the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility and Sanitary 
Sewer System.  Mr. Frazier stated the plan will be adjusted regularly as projects are completed 
and components change.  He also stated a debt ratio of 1 or more must be maintained. With 
Council’s approval of this plan, the Sanitary Sewer Rehab Project is set to go out for bid on 1 
May 2012. 
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of Resolution 12-31, Authorizing the 
Adoption of the Publicly Owned Treatment Works Asset Management Plan.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Davis, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe.   NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: 
None. (See Resolution Book 2, p. 311) 
 
1) Ordinance 12-27, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #37, Amending General Fund 10 and 
Powell Bill Fund 11; 2) Ordinance 12-28, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #38, Amending 
Water Fund 30 and CIP Water Fund 32; 3) Ordinance 12-29, FY 11-12, Budget 
Amendment #39, Amending the CIP Regional Water Fund 46.   (Reference:  CAF 12-54, 
Ordinance 12-27, 12-28 and 12-29) 
 
City Manager Griffin explained these items are housekeeping matters to bring budgetary items 
into alignment by: 1) bringing the Powell Bill Fund into balance with actual receipts from the 
State vs. budgeted estimates; 2) reconciling completed projects and authorizing close out 
procedures for the Water Fund and CIP Water Fund.  It also covers unanticipated expenditures in 
excess of budget due to the large water breaks on Shirley Drive and at the Glass Plant off US 
Hwy #1; and 3) allocating unbudgeted revenue in the fund to the 20MGD contingency fund and 
reconciles the ongoing projects.  
 
Council Member Coffey asked for an explanation of the $490,948 reduction with the Powell Bill, 
and City Manager Griffin explained the funds were never received so there was nothing to be 
refunded but this purely brought the item into balance.  Mr. Griffin went on to explain funds 
from the Powell Bill have to be received in Fund 11 but are spent from Fund 10. 
 
Council Member Daeke made a comment about the many phone calls he receives from citizens 
regarding needed street work and said the quarter of a million spent on Shirley Drive is an 
indication of where the money goes. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 42 

9 April 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 5 

Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of Ordinances 12-27, 12-28 and 12-29, 
Ordinance 12-27, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #37, Amending General Fund 10 and Powell 
Bill Fund 11; 2) Ordinance 12-28, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #38, Amending Water Fund 30 
and CIP Water Fund 32; 3) Ordinance 12-29, FY 11-12, Budget Amendment #39, Amending the 
CIP Regional Water Fund 46.  (Reference:  CAF 12-54, Ordinance 12-27, 12-28 and 12-29).  
Motion seconded by Council Member Daeke and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Davis, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey.  NO: None.  
ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: None.    (See Ordinance Book 8, p. 405, 407 and 409) 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizen desired to address Council. 
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem/Chairman Pro-Tem (No Report) 
b) City Manager  (No Report) 
c) City Attorney (No Report) 
d) City Clerk  -  Reminded Council of Leadership Vance City Day on Tuesday, 10 April. 

 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed 
Session and stated there would be no report following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for two (2) Attorney-Client Privilege Matters Motion seconded by Council Member 
Rainey and unanimously approved.   
 
Council Member Coffey moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Rainey and unanimously approved.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Inscoe moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye 
and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 7:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 
PROCLAMATION  12-16 

A PROCLAMATION of the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Henderson, North Carolina, proclaiming April 22-28, 2012 as the  

Week of the Young Child 
 

 

WHEREAS, the Franklin-Granville-Vance Smart Start, Inc. and other local organizations, in 
conjunction with the National Association for the Education of Young Children, are 
celebrating the Week of the Young Child;  and 

WHEREAS, these organizations are working to improve early learning opportunities, which are 
crucial to the growth and development of young children, and to building better futures; 
and 

WHEREAS, all young children and their families deserve access to high-quality early education 
and care; and 

WHEREAS, in recognizing and supporting the people, programs and policies that are committed 
to high-quality early childhood education as the right choice for kids. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, JAMES D. O’GEARY, Mayor of the City of Henderson, North 
Carolina, along with City Council Members, do hereby proclaim April 22-28, 2012 as the 
Week of the Young Child in Henderson, North Carolina and encourage all citizens to work 
to invest in early childhood. 

Proclaimed this 23rd day of April 2012. 

 

 

_________________________ 
        James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:  
  
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

19 April 2012 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D.O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CM:  12-06 

Re:  Public Hearing : CDBG Infrastructure Hook-Up Grant 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
On 12 March 2012 a Public Hearing was conducted at the City Council Meeting regarding the 
infrastructure hook-up grant which would assist property owners with the cost of installing the 
water and sewer taps, as well as the cost of installing the service lines from the tap to the house.   
 
This Public Hearing is the second of the two public hearings regarding the infrastructure hook-up 
grant that must be held prior to the application of said grant being submitted.   
 
The City staff has identified approximately 70 property owners within the city limits who are 
water customers, but not connected to the City of Henderson sanitary sewer system.  Letters 
were sent out on 15 March 2012 and again on 13 April 2012 to gauge the interest in applying for 
this program.    
 
To date only two applications have been received for this assistance.  Based on this feedback, it 
is recommended that this Public Hearing be postponed until May 14th to allow more response 
time. 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 19 Apr 12 Regular Meeting 
    



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 
13 April 2012 

 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF 12-56 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-35, Award of Audit Contract between 
the City of Henderson and William L. Stark and Company. 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-35, Award of Audit Contract between the City of Henderson and 

William L. Stark and Company. 
 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Due to a conflict of interest, the City is no longer able to utilize the services of Phillips, Dorsey, 
Thomas, Waters & Brafford, P.A. to perform the yearly audit.  As such, proposal requests were 
solicited for audit services for FY12, FY13 and FY14.  Two proposals were received as follows:  
1) William L. Stark and Company, in the amount of $39,750 for FY12, and 2) Winston, 
Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, LLP, in the amount of $42,400 for FY12.   The cost for 
the FY11 audit was $34,750. 
 
William L. Stark and Company has worked on the City accounts, in conjunction with Phillips, 
Dorsey, Thomas, Waters & Brafford, P.A., for at least the last two (2) years, and since they have 
a working knowledge of the City’s accounts, staff recommends Council approve this contract 
and that this local auditing firm be allowed to conduct the FY11-12 audit.  William L. Stark and 
Company agrees to complete the audit by October 31, following the close of the fiscal year on 
June 30.   
 
Enclosures 
 

1. Resolution 12-35 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 26 Apr 12 Short Reg. Meeting 
 



 2

 

RESOLUTION 
12-35 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A CONTRACT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF HENDERSON AND WILLIAM L. STARK AND COMPANY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) is required to have an independent audit of its 
financial records performed on an annual basis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City solicited proposal for audit services and two firms responded as follows:  

William L. Stark and Company and Winston, Williams, Creech, Evans & Company, 
LLP; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City utilized the services of William L. Stark and Company (the Company) in 

the past; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Company has provided a proposal for the FY12 Audit, said services to be in the 

amount of $39,750.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON THAT it does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign a contract, being more 
fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, for services with the Company for 
FY12, FY13 and FY14; and FY12 being in the amount of $39,750. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-35, introduced by Council Member *** and seconded by Council 
Member ***, on this the *** day of April 2012 and having been submitted to a roll call vote, 
was *** by the following votes: YES:    NO:  ABSTAIN:  ABSENT 

 
 
 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
  

_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
 

________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 



 3

 

Resolution 12-35 
Attachment A 



 4

 



 5

 



 6

 



 7

 



 8

 



 9

 



 10

 



 11

 



 12

 



 13

 



 14

 



 15

 



 16

 



 17

 



 18

 



 19

 



 20

 
 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

16 April 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF 12-12 

Consideration of Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds From Vance County for 
the Months of March, 2011, April 2011, May 2011 and June 2011. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Months of March 2011, 

April 2011, May 2011 and June 2011. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Vance County Tax office submitted the following tax releases and refunds to former Finance 
Director Sandra Wilkerson.  These releases and refunds were never sent to Council for approval.  
They are found to be in order and are now being recommended for approval.  
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  23 Apr 12 Short Reg Meeting 
 



 2

March, 2011 
 

   

Steed, William H. & Others Foreclosure 2006                       119.19 

Steed, William H. & Others Foreclosure 2007                       119.19 

Steed, William H. & Others Foreclosure 2008                         73.39 

Steed, William H. & Others Foreclosure 2008                    4,063.32 

Steed, William H. & Others Foreclosure 2009                         40.89 

Durham, Crestina Personal Property 2010                         34.78 

Grissom, Kimberly Sue Correct Value 2010                           6.98 

Steed, William H. & Others Foreclosure 2010                         40.89 

Bailey, Latonya Nicole Pro-rate 2009                           7.26 

Eaton, Jonah Marsha Jr. Pro-rate 2009                         39.31 

Smith, Donna Elizabeth Pro-rate 2009                           4.64 

Stevenson, Felisia Bis Correct Situs 2009                         15.44 

Alliance Rehabilitative Care Non-Profit Exempt 2010                       215.04 

Bailey, Latonya Nicole Pro-rate 2010                          13.81 

Bullock, Ray Anthony Correct Situs 2010                          82.31 

Bullock, Richard Pro-rate 2010                            5.85 

City of Henderson Government 2010                        109.22 

Clayton Andrew Thomas Correct Situs 2010                          72.01 

County of Vance Government 2010                        627.66 

D D Residential Service, Inc. Non-Profit Exempt 2010                        111.50 

Evans, Tiffany Vishond Pro-rate 2010                          19.28 

Fletcher, James Wayne Pro-rate 2010                          12.93 

Franklin, Loretta Jean Correct Situs 2010                          70.14 

Franklin Vance Warren Non-Profit Exempt 2010                          30.71 

Gupton, Harriett Jackson Pro-rate 2010                          49.55 

Hilliard, Norman Marshall Correct Situs 2010                          26.85 

Hilliards Garage Correct Situs 2010                          13.94 

Jackson, Noleen Spence Pro-rate 2010                          68.91 

Jones, Shirley Marie Pro-rate 2010                            1.45 

Junk, Robert Joseph Correct Situs 2010                        129.75 

Lee, Carolyn Fay Pro-rate 2010                          30.12 

Lloyd, Jerry Davis Pro-rate 2010                          45.16 

M.R. Williams, Inc. Pro-rate 2010                          55.59 

Medlin, Charles Davis Correct Situs 2010                          29.83 

Moore, Anita Correct Value 2010                          10.00 

PNC Equipment Finance State Assessed 2010                       400.37 

Royster, Thomas L. Pro-rate 2010                         16.03 

Scoggins, Leo Ronald Pro-rate 2010                         89.72 

Shiloh Baptist Church Religious 2010                         39.25 

Small, Doris Williams Pro-rate 2010                           5.98 

Tucker, Harold Shields Correct Situs 2010                         48.14 

Volume and Value, Inc. Correct Value 2010                           3.45 

Walker, Robert Hartwell Pro-rate 2010                         55.19 

Wisdom For Life Travel Correct Situs 2010                       102.84 

Wishnewski, Merrill A. Correct Situs 2010                         12.93 

 

                   7,170.79 Total

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR



 3

March, 2011 

   
 
 
April, 2011 

   
 
 
 
 

Burks, Gina Giddings Vehicle Sold 2010 10.43

Jackson, Dena Lee Vehicle Sold 2010 23.13

Joseph, Jiji Rachel Vehicle Sold 2010 58.13

Lazar, John Valentine Vehicle Sold 2010 29.34

Lozano, Maria Isabel Vehicle Sold 2010 2.58

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND

Total $123.61 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

Vaughan, Tessie M. Correct Value 2010                        236.92 

E Clips LLC 2009                          35.10 

Evans Famous Bar-B-Que 2006                          95.49 

Fast Tax Correct Value 2006                          79.06 

Fast Tax Correct Value 2007                          60.30 

Fast Tax Correct Value 2008                          47.46 

Fast Tax Correct Value 2009                          45.63 

Fast Tax Correct Value 2010                          42.12 

West, Benjamin Dale Pro-rate 2010                          62.24 

Barnett, David Morrison Pro-rate 2010                          59.32 

City of Henderson Pro-rate 2010                        143.96 

Davis, Maddie Fuller Pro-rate 2010                          74.76 

Demetriades, Gus Peter Pro-rate 2010                          24.22 

Diogo, David Anthony Pro-rate 2010                        139.40 

Foster, Macy Arnold Pro-rate 2010                          37.77 

Goodson's Mobile Home Pro-rate 2010                        110.97 

Gregory, Caroline Terry Pro-rate 2010                          54.46 

Johnson, Wilfort Ferre Pro-rate 2010                          14.04 

Kreitzer. Richard Char Pro-rate 2010                          83.71 

Littleton, Samuel Jess Pro-rate 2010                            5.69 

M.R. Williams, Inc. Pro-rate 2010                        226.33 

Moss, Elizabeth Ann Pro-rate 2010                          60.60 

Patel, Bhikhubhai Vall Pro-rate 2010                          30.54 

Powell, Robert Henry Pro-rate 2010                          25.38 

Rainey, Wilbert Earl Jr. Pro-rate 2010                          90.67 

Ranes, Connie Spruill Pro-rate 2010                        110.27 

Ranes, William Ray Pro-rate 2010                            9.31 

Roberson, Donald Ray Pro-rate 2010                          14.43 

Stevenson, William Dee Pro-rate 2010                          13.10 

Waverly, Walter Gene Pro-rate 2010                            1.34 

Wimbush, Dorothy Jones Pro-rate 2010                          10.30 

                    2,044.89 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Total



 4

April, 2011 

   
 
 
 
May, 2011 
 

   
 
 
 

Hermosillo, Rafael Garcia Vehicle Sold 2009 13.82

Hermosillo, Rafael Garcia Vehicle Sold 2010 10.83

Hermosillo, Rafael Garcia Vehicle Sold 2010 8.52

Hogge, Lena Johnson Vehicle Sold 2010 15.46

Jones, Richard Wilson Vehicle Sold 2010 14.33

Total $62.96 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND

Barbera, Raul Personal Property 2010                          38.90 

Krider, Charmonica Personal Property 2010                          37.58 

Mera, Ilda Personal Property 2010                          40.16 

Strickland, Skylar Correct Value 2010                        137.30 

Ayscue, Michael Kevin Pro-rate 2009                            1.56 

Bullock, Yvonne Peace Pro-rate 2009                            7.36 

Almand, Sally Barnett Correct Value 2010                            7.64 

Carter, Clifton Edward Correct Situs 2010                          47.91 

Carter, Clifton Edward Correct Situs 2010                            1.76 

Hardee, William Curtis Correct Situs 2010                          14.91 

Hargrove, Carolyn Bern Pro-rate 2010                            9.91 

Hargrove, Jacqueline T Correct Situs 2010                          36.09 

Harper Carolina Holdings
Remove Late Listing 
Penalty

2010                     1,602.71 

Harris, Alice Walker Correct Situs 2010                          38.02 

Hoyt, Stephanie Willis Pro-rate 2010                          11.65 

Hunt, Francis Taylor Correct Situs 2010                          26.79 

Ingham, Nancy Lee Pro-rate 2010                          27.30 

Jefferson Green, Inc. Correct Situs 2010                          46.09 

Kasey, Brent Henry Reg Veh Billed 2010                          10.73 

Kemp, Kellie Araadia Pro-rate 2010                            2.85 

Linton, Michael Curtis Pro-rate 2010                          28.03 

Long, Timothy Glenn Correct Value 2010                          27.49 

Mitchell, Julius Charles Pro-rate 2010                          22.38 

Mooring, Jody Ray Pro-rate 2010                          27.85 

Morton, Floyd Thomas Correct Situs 2010                          50.13 

Peace, Kimberly Denise Pro-rate 2010                            2.34 

Royster, Haley Peace Pro-rate 2010                          15.52 

Venable, Michael Anthony Pro-rate 2010                            1.75 

Whitt, William Coleman Correct Value 2010                        104.87 

Winston, Kathryn Cushi Pro-rate 2010                          54.41 

Wynn, Roslyn Chanette Pro-rate 2010                          27.19 

Wynn, Roslyn Chanette Pro-rate 2010                          33.46 

Zuniga Dagoberto Rosa Correct Situs 2010                          44.92 

Zuniga Dagoberto Rosa Correct Situs 2010                        212.23 

                    2,799.79 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Total



 5

May, 2011 

   
 
 
 
June, 2011 

   
 
 
   
 

Chavis, Mary Charles Vehicle Sold 2010 2.65

Dunston, Michelle Kearney Vehicle Sold 2010                          67.51 

Howard, Veronica Monique Vehicle Sold 2010 44.35

McCaskill, Samuel Gault Vehicle Sold 2010 2.36

Obery, Thurston Vehicle Sold 2010 2.13

Stevenson, James McMillan Vehicle Sold 2010 0.57

Total                       119.57 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND

Sanchez, Deni Personal Property 2010                          34.78 

Wiggins, Crystal Marie Old Vehicle Bill 2006                          56.44 

Wiggins, Crystal Marie Discharged Bankruptcy 2007                          53.48 

Overby, Beverly Colber Pro-rate 2009                            1.98 

Alston, Josephine Beatrice Pro-rate 2010                            8.49 

Bailey, Lynwood Roger Correct Situs 2010                          26.20 

Bailey, Lynwood Roger Correct Situs 2010                          86.36 

Bates, Sylvia Anita Pro-rate 2010                            2.90 

Cawthorne, William Glenn Correct Situs 2010                          12.93 

Choice Property Associates Correct Situs 2010                        147.48 

Clark, Tameka Shalanett Reg Vehicle Billed 2010                          16.22 

Cousin, Lawrence Gardner Correct Situs 2010                          18.72 

Evans, Thelma Sykes Pro-rate 2010                            6.71 

Faines, Ellen Thomas Pro-rate 2010                            5.24 

Faulkner, Harris Mary Kathleen Pro-rate 2010                          11.55 

Giddings, Regina Shekitae Pro-rate 2010                            3.74 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        378.37 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        523.57 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        568.38 

Lassiter, Kevin Rucien Pro-rate 2010                            6.35 

Newman, Irving Jr. Pro-rate 2010                            0.44 

Olearo, Christopher Robert Correct Situs 2010                          27.08 

Olearo, Christopher Robert Correct Situs 2010                          26.03 

Perry, Carter Lamont Correct Situs 2010                          65.28 

Perry, Wanda Cofield Pro-rate 2010                          23.52 

Pettaway, Bryan Oneal Military Exemption 2010                        151.51 

Ranes, Elizabeth Kathryn Correct Value 2010                          22.09 

Reid, Reginal Patrick Correct Situs 2010                          18.07 

Reid, Reginal Patrick Correct Situs 2010                          32.11 

Reid, Reginal Patrick Correct Situs 2010                          44.46 

Reid, Reginal Patrick Correct Situs 2010                            5.09 

Ruggles, David Abbott Pro-rate 2010                          82.33 

Salem Leasing Corp Correct Situs 2010                        362.64 

The Bailey Company Correct Situs 2010                          66.92 

                    2,897.46 

NAME
REASON FOR 

RELEASES
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
RELEASE

Total



 6

June 2011 
 

   

Allen, Joseph Jr. Vehicle Sold 2010                            0.98 

Clever, Katha Roesnick Vehicle Sold 2010                          10.94 

Davis, Phyllis Holmes Vehicle Sold 2010                            1.20 

Davis, Phyllis Holmes Vehicle Sold 2010                            5.93 

Evans, Thelma Sykes Vehicle Sold 2010                            2.91 

Evans, Thelma Sykes Vehicle Sold 2010                            5.75 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        323.98 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        187.88 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        200.97 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                          95.72 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                          27.55 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        270.92 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        395.11 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        375.51 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        142.82 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        121.89 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        254.89 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        318.44 

Greystone Concrete Products Correct Situs 2010                        312.23 

Hauter, Alexander Nagi Vehicle Sold 2010                            3.44 

Jeffcoat, Huel Davis Vehicle Sold 2010                          13.41 

Mathis, Velma Simmons Vehicle Sold 2010                            4.23 

Reid, Sheila Anderson Vehicle Sold 2010                            8.88 

Smith, Rhonda Mistien Vehicle Sold 2010                            6.36 

Total                    3,091.94 

NAME
REASON FOR 

REFUND
TAX YEAR

AMOUNT OF 
REFUND



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

9 April 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  12-30 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-11, Endorsing the Vance County 
Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-11, Endorsing the Vance County Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Section 322 of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 states that local governments must 
develop an All-Hazards Mitigation Plan in order to be eligible to received future Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program Funds and other disaster-related assistance funding and that said Plan 
must be updated and adopted within a five year cycle.  The Plan was originally adopted in April 
2004.  Vance County staff has reviewed the Plan and has made some minor changes, more fully 
articulated in Attachment #2 to this CAF. 
 
Resolution 12-11 states the City of Henderson’s intent to support Vance County’s Hazard 
Mitigation Plan, and if approved, will help to assure the eligibility of Vance County for State 
assistance in the event that a State disaster affecting Vance County is declared. 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Resolution 12-11 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430-5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 23 Apr12 Short Reg Meeting   
 



 2

RESOLUTION 12-11 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL  
TO ENDORSE THE VANCE COUNTY 
 HAZARDOUS MITIGATION PLAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, the citizens and property within the County of Vance are subject to the effects of 
natural hazards that pose threats to lives and cause damage to property, and with the 
knowledge and experience that certain areas of the county are particularly vulnerable to  
flooding, hurricanes, winter weather, severe thunderstorms, tornados and wild fires; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Vance desires to seek ways to mitigate the impact of identified 

hazard risks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has, in Part 6, Article 21 of Chapter 

143; Parts 3, 5, and 8 of Article 19 of Chapter 160A; and Article 8 of Chapter 160A of 
the North Carolina General Statutes, delegated to local governmental units, the 
responsibility to adopt regulations designed to promote the public health, safety, and 
general welfare of its citizenry; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Section 1 Part 166A of the 

North Carolina General Statutes (adopted in Session Law 2001-214 --- Senate Bill 300 
effective July 1, 2001), states therein in Item (a) (2) “For a state of disaster proclaimed 
pursuant to G.S. 166A-6(a) after August 1, 2002, the eligible entity shall have a hazard 
mitigation plan approved pursuant to the Stafford Act”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 states that local 

governments must develop an All-Hazards Mitigation Plan in order to be eligible to 
receive future Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Funds and other disaster-related 
assistance funding and that said Plan must be updated and adopted within a five year 
cycle; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson in conjunction with the County of Vance has performed a 

comprehensive review and evaluation of each section of the previously approved Hazard 
Mitigation Plan and has updated the said plan as required under regulations at 44 CFR 
Part 201 and according to guidance issued by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency and the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management, said updates being 
more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution,; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Henderson City Council to fulfill this obligation in order that 

Vance County will be eligible for federal and state assistance in the event that a state of 
disaster is declared for a hazard event affecting the City; 

 
 



 3

NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 
DOES HEREBY: 

 
1. Adopt the Vance County Hazard Mitigation Plan, being more fully articulated in 

Attachment B to this Resolution. 
2. Vests, Brian Short, Director of Emergency Management Services, with the  
 responsibility, authority, and the means to:  

(a) Inform all concerned parties of this action. 
(b) Cooperate with Federal, State and local agencies and private firms which 

undertake to study, survey, map and identify floodplain areas, and cooperate with 
neighboring communities with respect to management of adjoining floodplain 
areas in order to prevent exacerbation of existing hazard impacts. 

3. Appoints Brian Short, Director of Emergency Management Services, to assure that the 
Hazard Mitigation Plan is reviewed annually and every five years as specified in the Plan 
to assure that the Plan is in compliance with all State and Federal regulations and that any 
needed revisions or amendments to the Plan are developed and presented to the Board of 
Commissioners of Vance County and the City Council of the City of Henderson for 
consideration. 

4. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the 
objectives of the Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-11, upon motion of Council Member ____________ and seconded 
by Council Member _______________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received 
the following votes and was _____________ on this the ***  day of _______________2012:  
YES:  .  NO:  .     ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:  . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference Minute Book 42, pp 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

18 April 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 12-A-28 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-37, Authorizing an Informal Bid Award for 
Birch Circle Storm Drain Repair to Harris Equipment Company in the Amount of $39,640. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure Systems. 
 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of Resolution 12-37, Authorizing an Informal Bid Award for Birch Circle Storm Drain 

Repair to Harris Equipment Company in the Amount of $39,640. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The City Council approved budget amendment #33 on 26 March 2012 authorizing funds for various street 
repair projects which included Birch Circle.  This work involves the installation of approximately 200 
linear feet of 36” pipe, storm drain structures, property restoring and stabilizing the road shoulder.  
 
Informal bids were received to perform this work and the quotes are as follows: 
 
 Harris Equipment Company  $39,640 
 H. G. Reynolds Company  $46,796 
 City’s Estimate    $45,000 
 
Based on these bids, the City staff recommends awarding the contract to Harris Equipment Company (a 
local contractor) with a total project cost of $39,640. 
 
Further design and bids are being received for the two remaining streets, Hillside Drive and Cameron 
Drive. 
 
Enclosures: 
 
1. Resolution 12-37 
2. Harris Equipment Company Proposal 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 23 April 12 Short Reg. Meeting 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 12-37 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  
A BID AWARD FOR THE BIRCH CIRCLE STORM DRAIN REPAIR PROJECT 

TO HARRIS EQUIPMENT COMPANY AT $39,640 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2010, and during said 
Retreat identified Strategic Objectives and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure—To provide 

reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Staff has found a significant problem with the ditch and storm drainage along Birch 

Circle; and 
 
WHEREAS, on 26 March 2012, the City Council was provided information on this problem during 
discussions associated with the budget amendment to perform the various projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, informal bids have been solicited for the performance of this work in accordance with the 

North Carolina General Statutes [G.S.143-131] Informal Bidding Procedure; and 
 
WHEREAS, two bids were received for the project, with Harris Equipment Company being the lowest, 

responsible bidder, based on price and experience. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY APPROVE awarding of the Birch Circle Storm Drain Project to Harris Equipment 
Company in the total contract amount of $39,640, said contract being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or City Manager is authorized to sign all agreements and 

documents necessary to effect said agreement. 
 
The foregoing Resolution 12-37, upon motion of Council Member Inscoe and second by Council 
Member Coffey, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and 
was ___________on this the _______ day of ___________ 2012:  
 YES:.                             NO:                      . ABSTAIN:                        .  ABSENT:                     . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. ***. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

CAF 12-A-28 Attachment 2 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

19 April 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-A-33 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 12-A-19, Amending Sections of Zoning 
Codes for the City of Henderson to Provide for Bed & Breakfast Homes, and 
Ordinance 12-B-19, Amending Sections of Zoning Codes for the City of Henderson 
to Provide for Bed & Breakfast Inns. 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 3-2:  Revise and Align Land Use and Sign Ordinance and Implement Conditional Use 

                  Zoning. 
 

Recommendation: 
 

 Approval of Ordinance 12-A-19, Amending Sections of Zoning Codes for the City of 
Henderson to Provide for Bed & Breakfast Homes, and Ordinance 12-B-19, Amending 
Sections of Zoning Codes for the City of Henderson to Provide for Bed & Breakfast Inns. 
 
 

Executive Summary: 
 
Ordinance 12-A-19 amends the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Henderson to define “Bed and 
Breakfast or Tourist Home” as a private, single family, detached residence in which short-term 
lodging (not exceeding seven consecutive days) is offered to the traveling public for 
compensation for no more than eight guests in no more than six rooms.  
 
Ordinance 12-B-19 amends the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Henderson to define “Bed & 
Breakfast Inns” as a business in which short term (not exceeding seven consecutive days) 
lodging is offered to the traveling public for compensation for no more than twenty-three persons 
per night and with no more than twelve guest rooms.  
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 23 April 2012 
 



 2

A bed & breakfast inn differs from a bed & breakfast home, in that a bed & breakfast inn is a 
larger business facility located in business zoning districts, and bed & breakfast homes are 
located in private, single family detached residences for a smaller numbers of guests and are 
located in residential zoning districts.   
 
These Amending Ordinances, which were recommended unanimously by the City of Henderson 
Planning Board at their 2 April 2012 meeting, also adds language relative to the following: 
sections 672B and 673B of the Zoning Ordinance outlining detail requirements for both types of 
Bed and Breakfast establishments. 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-A-19 
2. Ordinance 12-B-19 



 3

ORDINANCE  12-A-19   
 
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public hearing 
thereon, Councilperson ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which was 
seconded by Councilperson ______________________ and read: 
 

A ZONING ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR BED & BREAKFAST HOMES 
 

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That the Zoning Code of the City of Henderson is amended as follows:   
 

A. That Section 1002.91 is amended to read as follows: 
 
 “91.  Tourist Home.  See Bed & Breakfast Home.” 
  
B. That Section 1002.80 re Rooming House is amended to insert the words “a bed & 

breakfast home or” immediately before the words “a tourist home”. 
 
C. That a new section be added designated as “Section 1002.7a” and reading as 

follows: 
 

“7a. Bed & Breakfast Home or Tourist Home.”  A private single family detached 
residence in which short-term lodging (not exceeding 7 consecutive days) is 
offered to the traveling public for compensation to not more than eight guests in 
no more than six rooms (see also definition of “Rooming House” for distinction 
therefrom).” 
 

D. That Section 310A, 2.11 be amended to read “2.11 Bed & Breakfast Home or 
Tourist Home” and that the same be permitted with a Special Use Permit in OI, 
OIA, R11, R8, R6, RA, R15M, and R8M zoning districts.” 

 
E. That Section 510, 2.11 be amended to read “2.11 Bed & Breakfast Home or 

Tourist Home” and requiring “2 parking spaces for the owner, plus 1 space per 
bedroom to be rented”. 

 
F. That a new section be added designated as Section 672B and reading as follows: 

“672B.  Bed & Breakfast Home or Tourist Home. 
 
672B.1  Private Residential Structure.  The home must be located in a residential 
structure originally designed and used primarily as a private single family 
resident. 
 
672B.2.  Owner Occupancy.  An owner (with at least a 10% ownership interest in 
the premises) of the residence must permanently reside therein. 
 



 4

672B.3. Rooms & Guests Limits.  No more than six rooms shall be rented out to 
guests and no such room shall be occupied for sleeping purposes by more than 
two guests (plus said guest’s children under eighteen years of age).  The total 
number of guests (excluding children under eighteen years of age) shall not 
exceed eight on the premises at one time.  No guest shall stay in the home for a 
period of more than seven days in any 15 day period. 
 
672B.4. Premises Occupied.  The quarters to be occupied by the owner and by all 
guests shall be in the principal residential structure.  Separate structures, 
accessory buildings and garages are not permitted to be used as living units or 
sleeping rooms for bed and breakfast guests.  No separate exterior doorways for 
individual guest rooms shall be permitted, unless the separate doorway was part 
of the original architecture of the house or was in existence prior to the adoption 
date of this provision. 
 
672B.5.  Floor Plan.  There shall be submitted with each application, for approval 
by the Board of Adjustment, a floor plan of the entire structure, designating the 
use and floor area of each room and showing ingress and egress from each room.  
Plans for any enlargement to the exterior of the structure shall be submitted and 
specifically approved by the Board of Adjustment, after a public hearing, whether 
the enlargement is at the time of the original application or at any time thereafter 
in the future.  All kitchens, bedrooms and bathrooms shall be in the main 
structure.  In addition to one full bathroom for the owner, there shall be at least 
one full bathroom (with hot and cold running water) for each two bedrooms 
available for rental purpose. 
 
672B.6.  Room Subdivision.  No existing rooms shall be subdivided into 
individual sleeping rooms containing less than 120 square feet, and no guest 
bedroom shall be added containing less than 120 square feet.  
 
672B.7.   Meals.  There shall be only one kitchen facility on the premises.  No 
food shall be sold to the general public.  Overnight guests can only be served 
breakfast, together with afternoon or evening hors d'oeuvres and beverages on the 
premises; no other meals shall be provided on premises.  No food preparation will 
be allowed in any guest’s room. 
 
672B.8.  Fire & Safety.  All safety and fire codes shall be met.  Additionally, each 
guest room shall be equipped with a smoke detector and access to a fire 
extinguisher. 
 
672B.9.  Guest Stay & Registry.  Guests are limited to a length of stay of no more 
than seven (7) consecutive days.  The resident owner shall keep a current guest 
register including names, permanent addresses, dates of occupancy, and motor 
vehicle license number of all guests. 
 



 5

672B.10.  Parking.  Parking shall not be in the front yard or within side or back 
yard setbacks other than that which can be accommodated in a driveway no wider 
than 20 feet (part of which must be left open sufficient to allow any vehicles using 
interior parking spaces to pass).  Guest parking area(s) in or adjacent to residential 
use districts shall be screened by appropriate vegetation, fencing or walls so that 
guests’ vehicles are not visible from the street or from adjacent residential 
properties.  The applicant shall submit a site plan which shall indicate where the 
parking is to be located and the manner in which it is to be screened.  No guest 
parking shall be permitted within any street right of way. 
 
672B.11.  Location.  The home must abut, and guests must have direct access to, a 
major, minor, or collector street. 
 
672B.  12.  Signage.  The only sign permitted shall be one freestanding sign per 
public street frontage (with writing being permitted on each side).  The sign(s) 
shall not exceed three feet in height and fifteen square feet in sign area when 
located within ten feet of the street right-of-way.  When located more than ten feet 
from the right-of-way, the sign(2) shall not exceed five feet in height and fifteen 
square feet in sign area.  Any sign lighting shall be located within four feet of the 
sign and no higher than the sign itself; any such lighting shall be directed towards 
the sign. 
 
672B.13.  Lighting.  Other than the sign lighting, there shall be permitted one pole 
light (not to exceed 30 feet in height) at the guest parking area, provided that the 
light from the same is directed away from and shielded from adjacent properties.  
No other lighting is permitted other than that attached to the principal dwelling 
unit and any garage (which lighting shall not be directed toward adjoining 
properties), together with any ground lighting needed for walkways. 
 
672B.14.  Permits.  The home shall obtain all required permits from the State.” 
 

G. That Section 1002.80 be amended by adding the words “bed & breakfast home 
and” before the words “tourist home” in the second sentence and further by 
adding the following sentence at the end of the definition of “Rooming House”: 

 
“A rooming house shall be a residential structure designed and used primarily as a 
private residence and the owner (with at least a 10% ownership interest in the 
premises) shall permanently reside therein; no more than six rooms shall be rented 
out and no such room shall be occupied for sleeping purposes by more than two 
persons (plus guest’s children under eighteen years of age). 
 

H. That the parking requirements for Sections 510, 2.13 and 510, 2.14 be deleted and 
the following inserted in lieu of the same: 

 
“2.13.  Rooming House _____ 2 spaces, plus 1 space per rented bedroom.” 

 



 6

Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 
 

The foregoing Ordinance 12-A-19,  upon motion of Council member ____________ and 
seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2012:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 

 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-A-19, A Zoning 
Ordinance Providing For Bed & Breakfasts, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular 
Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance 
Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



 7

ORDINANCE  12-B-19  
 
After receiving the recommendation of the Planning Board and after a duly advertised public hearing 
thereon, Councilperson ___________________________ introduced the following Ordinance which was 
seconded by Councilperson ______________________ and read: 
 

A ZONING ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR BED & BREAKFAST INNS 
 

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That the Zoning Code of the City of Henderson is amended as follows:   
 

A. That a new section be added designated as “Section 1002.7b” and reading as follows: 
  

“7b.  Bed & Breakfast Inn.  A business in which short term (not exceeding seven 
consecutive days) lodging is offered to the traveling public for compensation for 
no more than twenty-three persons per night and with no more than twelve guest 
rooms.  A bed & breakfast inn differs from a bed & breakfast home in that a bed 
& breakfast inn is a larger business facility located in business zoning districts 
and bed & breakfast homes are located in private, single family detached 
residences for smaller numbers of guests and are located in residential zoning 
districts.”   
 

B. That Section 310A, 2.14 be amended to read “2.14 Bed & Breakfast Inns” and 
that the same be permitted with a Special Use Permit in B1, B2, B2A, B4, OI and 
OIA zoning districts. 

 
C. That Section 510, 2.13 be amended to read “2.13 Bed & Breakfast Inn” and 

requiring two parking spaces for the owner or manager, plus one space per 
bedroom  to be rented.   
 

D. That a new section be added designated as Section 673B and reading as follows: 
“673B Bed & Breakfast Inn.   
 
673B.1   Original Structure Use.  The business must be located primarily in a 
structure which was originally designed and used as a residential building. 
 
673B.2.  Occupancy by Owner or Manager.  An owner (with at least a 10 percent 
ownership in the premises) of the property or a business manager must 
permanently reside therein. 
 
673B.3.  Rooms and Guest Limits.  No more than twelve rooms shall be rented 
out to guests and no such room shall be occupied for sleeping purposes by more 
than two guests (plus a guest’s children under eighteen years of age).  The total 
number of guests (excluding guest’s children under eighteen years of age) shall 



 8

not exceed twenty-three guests on the premises at any one time.  No guests shall 
stay in the business for a period of more than seven days in any 15 day period. 
 
673B.4.  Premises Occupied.  The quarters to be occupied by the owner or 
manager shall be in the principal structure which was originally residential in 
nature; also at least one-fourth of the bedrooms to be rented shall be in said 
principal structure. 
 
673B.5.  Floor Plan.  There shall be submitted with each application, for approval 
by the Board of Adjustment, a floor plan of the entire structure, designating the 
use and floor area of each room and showing ingress and egress from each room.  
Plans for any enlargement to the exterior of the structure shall be submitted and 
specifically approved by the Board of Adjustment, after a public hearing, whether 
the enlargement is at the time of the original application or at any time thereafter 
in the future.  All bathrooms shall have both hot and cold running water.  In 
addition to one full bathroom for the owner/manager, there shall be a private full 
bathroom for each bedroom available for rental purposes (except a full bathroom 
can be shared by a two bedroom suite).  All kitchens shall be in the main structure 
or in a separate “restaurant” structure. 
 
673B.6.  Room Subdivision.  No existing rooms shall be subdivided into 
individual sleeping rooms containing less than 120 square feet and no bedroom 
shall be added containing less than 120 square feet. 
 
673B.7.   Meals and Accessory Uses.  There shall be only one kitchen facility on 
the premises.  No food preparation will be allowed in any guest’s room.  
Accessory uses that will be permitted on the property shall include, but shall not 
be necessarily limited to, restaurants, spas, meeting facilities (for no more than 
100 people or as permitted by the fire code), provided that each such accessory 
uses are applied for through a Special Use Permit (which can be included within 
the Special Use Permit for the Bed & Breakfast Inn or can be applied for 
separately or later before such accessory use is to be opened).   
 
673B.8.  Fire & Safety.  All safety and fire codes shall be met.  Additionally, each 
guest room shall be equipped with a smoke detector and access to a fire 
extinguisher.  There shall be more than one fire “exit” from any structure 
containing more than four bedrooms available for rental purposes.  There shall be 
more than one stairway (open for all upstairs bedroom floors) in any structure 
containing more than four bedrooms located above the ground floor. 
 
673B.9.  Guest Stay & Registry.  Guests are limited to a length of stay of no more 
than seven (7) consecutive days.  The resident owner/manager shall keep a current 
guest register including names, permanent addresses, dates of occupancy, and 
motor vehicle license number of all guests. 
 



 9

673B.10.  Parking.  Parking shall be within the building setback lines and shall 
have individual parking spaces designated for the individual rooms to be rented; 
the parking lot shall be paved, but shall not exceed the impervious requirements 
of the zoning district in which the same is located.  Parking spaces shall be 
constructed in accordance with Section 541 and 542 of the Zoning Code.  Guest 
parking areas shall be screened by appropriate vegetation, fencing or walls so that 
guest vehicles are not visible from any the street or from any adjacent residential 
properties.  The applicant shall submit a site plan which indicates where the 
parking spaces are to be located and the manner in which they are to be screened.  
No guest parking shall be permitted within any street right of way. 
 
673B.11.  Location.  The business must abut, and guests must have direct access 
to, a major, minor, or collector street. 
 
673B.  12.  Signage.  The only sign permitted shall be one freestanding sign per 
public street frontage (with writing being permitted on each side).  The sign(s) 
shall not exceed fifteen feet in height and shall be limited to fifty square feet for 
each such sign.  Any sign lighting shall be directed toward the sign.   
 
673B.13.  Lighting.  Other than the sign lighting, there shall be permitted one pole 
light (not to exceed 30 feet in height) at the guest parking area provided that the 
light from the same is directed away from and shielded from adjacent properties.  
No other lighting is permitted other than that attached to the business structures 
(which lighting shall not be directed toward adjacent properties), together with 
any ground lighting needed for walkways. 
 
673B. 14.  Permits.  The business shall obtain all required permits from the State.” 

 
Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-   , upon motion of Council member ____________ and 

seconded by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call 
vote and received the following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ 
day of _______________, 2012:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 4**, p. **. 
 



 10

_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-B-19, A Zoning 
Ordinance Providing For Bed & Breakfast Inns, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in 
Regular Session on **  ** 20** (See Minute Book 4*, p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in 
Ordinance Book # 8, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 20**. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 



 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________      

 
6 April 2012 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-55 
Consideration of Approval of: 1) Ordinance 12-32, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 41, 
Amending CIP Sewer Fund 44: 2) Ordinance 12-33, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 42, 
Amending the CIP Powell Bill Fund 42 and Powell Bill Fund 11:  3) Ordinance 12-34, FY 
11-12 Budget Amendment # 43, Amending CIP General Fund 41, General Fund 10 and 
Elmwood Cemetery Fund 5: 4) Ordinance 12-31, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #44, 
Amending the Regional Water Fund and the 2011 Revenue Refunding Bond Account:  5) 
Ordinance 12-35, FY 12-12 Budget Amendment #45. Amending Capital Reserves Utilities 
Fund 79 and Rate Stabilization Fund 79.  

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals and Core Values Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 1:  Implement Performance Excellence 
 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Consideration of Approval of: 1) Ordinance 12-32, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 41, 

Amending CIP Sewer Fund 44: 2) Ordinance 12-33, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 42, 
Amending the CIP Powell Bill Fund 42 and Powell Bill Fund 11:  3) Ordinance 12-34, FY 
11-12 Budget Amendment # 43, Amending CIP General Fund 41, General Fund 10 and 
Elmwood Cemetery Fund 5: 4) Ordinance 12-31, FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #44, 
Amending the Regional Water Fund and the 2011 Revenue Refunding Bond Account:  5) 
Ordinance 12-35, FY 12-12 Budget Amendment #45. Amending Capital Reserves Utilities 
Fund 79 and Rate  Stabilization Fund 79.  
 

 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 23 Apr 12 Short Reg. Meeting   
 



 2

Executive Summary 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-32, FY 12 Budget Amendment # 41 is to reconcile various current 
projects with their revenues and establish the basis for each, as well as establish a more valid 
baseline for the FY 12-13 Budget presentation. 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-33, FY 12 Budget Amendment # 42 is also to reconcile various on-
going projects with revenues and establish the basis for each.  CIP Powell Bill 42 has two open 
projects: High Street Connecter and several minor street improvements required as a result of 
Hurricane Irene in the fall of 2011.  This Ordinance cleans up this fund.  It also requires one 
small inter-fund transfer to Fund 11: Powell Bill, of $21,600 in order to revert to its fund balance 
and be re-appropriated in fund 10-571 for FY 13 for street resurfacing. 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-34, FY 12 Budget Amendment # 43 is to reconcile the various on-
going projects with revenues and to establish the basis for each in CIP General Fund 41.  As all 
of these projects are completed, this ordinance simply “cleans up” the fund.  It also reflects two 
small inter-fund transfers to the General and Elmwood funds to remove any unallocated funds. 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-31, FY 12 Budget Amendment # 44 is twofold.  First is to correct 
the transfer from the Regional Water Fund and the corresponding expenditure for that transfer, 
both of which are a portion of the debt attributable to the Regional Water Fund and were 
understated in the original budget ordinance.  Second is to correct the account relative to the 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, which replaced the 2001 Revenue Bonds in August of 
2011. 
 
The purpose of Ordinance 12-35, FY 12 Budget Amendment #45 is to transfer $112,800 
appropriated by Council during the FY 11-12 Budget process for the HWRF upgrade project 
from the general utilities reserve fund to the rate stabilization fund to help mitigate future rate 
increases needed to fund debt service associated with this project. 
 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Ordinance 12-32 
2. Ordinance 12-33 
3. Ordinance 12-34 
4. Ordinance 12-31 
5. Ordinance 12-35 



 3

ORDINANCE  12—32 
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 41 
AN AMENDMENT TO THE CIP SEWER FUND 44 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council  has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the water distribution system, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer 
Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

  

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised

840:  San Sew Rehab
Transfer From Sewer I&I 44-444-461-024 185,000$            185,000$             -$                     185,000$                       

CWMTF Grant-Sew Rehab 44-444-458-161 429,415$            429,000$             -$                     429,000$                       
Rural Center Grant--Sew Rehab 44-444-458-162 -$                   500,000$             -$                     500,000$                       

CWMTF Grant- UV 44-444-458-163 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               
Rural Center Grant--UV 44-444-458-165 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               

Vendor Rebate--UV 44-444-433-473 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               
Trans From Cap Reserve Utilities 44-444-461-071 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               

From Sewer Fund 44-444-461-031 -$                  17,628$              -$                     17,628$                         
840: San Sewer Rehab Total 614,415$            1,131,628$          -$                     1,131,628$                    

842: Newton Pump
Transfer from Sewer Fund 44-444-461-031 21,000$              42,000$               -$                     42,000$                         

Transfer from Cap Res Utilities 44-444-461-071 -$                  5,900$                -$                     5,900$                           
842: Newton Total 21,000$              47,900$               -$                     47,900$                         

847: HWRF Project
Transfer from Cap Res Utilities 44-847-461-071 70,000$              402,300$             -$                     402,300$                       

State Revolving Loan Fund 44-847-366-001 -$                   15,615,000$        -$                     15,615,000$                  
State Revolving Loan--Grant 44-847-366-002 -$                  1,000,000$         -$                     1,000,000$                    

847: HWRF Total 70,000$              17,017,300$        -$                     17,017,300$                  
850: UV Replacement

Rural Center Grant--UV 44-444-458-165 500,000$            500,000$             -$                     500,000$                       
Vendor Rebate--UV 44-444-433-473 75,000$              75,000$               -$                     75,000$                         
CWMTF Grant- UV 44-444-458-163 1,067,600$         1,067,600$          -$                     1,067,600$                    

Trans From Cap Reserve Utilities 44-444-461-071 25,000$             25,000$              -$                     25,000$                         
850: UV Replacement Total 1,667,600$         1,667,600$          -$                     1,667,600$                    

851: SS Rehab Project
State Revolving Loan 44-851-366-001 5,000$                500,000$             -$                     500,000$                       
State Revolving Grant 44-851-366-002 5,000$               500,000$            -$                     500,000$                       

851: SS Rehab Total 10,000$              1,000,000$          -$                     1,000,000$                    
852: Spring St. Sewer

Transfer from Cap Res Utilities 44-852-461-071 10,000$              17,900$               -$                     17,900$                         
Trans from Sewer Fund 44-852-461-031 108,350$            -$                     108,350$                       

852: Spring St. Total 10,000$              126,250$             -$                     126,250$                       
TOTAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY -$                               

840: San Sewer Rehab Total 614,415$            1,131,628$          -$                     1,131,628$                    
842: Newton Total 21,000$              47,900$               -$                     47,900$                         
847: HWRF Total 70,000$              17,017,300$        -$                     17,017,300$                  

850: UV Replacement Total 1,667,600$         1,667,600$          -$                     1,667,600$                    
851: SS Rehab Total 10,000$              1,000,000$          -$                     1,000,000$                    
852: Spring St. Total 10,000$             126,250$            -$                     126,250$                       

Total Fund Revenues 2,393,015$        20,990,678$       -$                     20,990,678$                  

Ordinance 12-32

FUNDS:
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 41

CIP SEWER FUND REVENUES: 44

44: CIP Sewer

 



 4

 
Original Current

Department Line Item Code Budgget Budget Amendment Revised

840:  Sanitary Sewer Rehab Project
Contracted Services 44-840-504-513 185,000$            -$                     -$                     -$                               

Administration 44-840-509-900 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               
Contingency 44-840-509-900 34,775$              -$                     -$                     -$                               

Legal Administration 44-840-510-200 2,500$                2,129$                 -$                     2,129$                           
Engineering UV 44-840-510-298 -$                   273$                    -$                     273$                              

Engineering Report 44-840-510-299 -$                   30,900$               -$                     30,900$                         
Engineering 44-840-510-301 80,570$              32,813$               -$                     32,813$                         

Construction 44-840-510-400 267,550$            844,285$             -$                     844,285$                       
UV Project-Construction 44-840-510-503 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               
Sewer Video Inspection 44-840-510-504 -$                   161,708$             -$                     161,708$                       

Construction / Administration 44-840-510-800 44,020$             59,520$              -$                    59,520$                         
840:  Sanitary Sewer Rehab Total 614,415$            1,131,628$          -$                     1,131,628$                    

842:  Newton Dairy Pump Project
Professional Services 44-842-500-400 -$                   1,000$                 -$                     1,000$                           

Contingency 44-842-509-900 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               
Engineering 44-842-510-300 -$                   25,900$               -$                     25,900$                         

Construction 44-842-510-400 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               
Right of Way 44-842-510-600 21,000$             21,000$              -$                    21,000$                         

842: Newton Dairy Total 21,000$              47,900$               -$                     47,900$                         

847:  HWRF Improvements
Preliminary Engineering Rept 44-847-223-002 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               

Engineering Design 44-847-223-003 -$                   843,125$             -$                     843,125$                       
Engineering Permitting Admin 44-847-223-004 -$                   32,105$               -$                     32,105$                         

Engineering Bidding/Award 44-847-223-005 -$                   39,380$               -$                     39,380$                         
Engineering Geotechnical 44-847-223-006 -$                   110,000$             -$                     110,000$                       

Construction Admin 44-847-223010 -$                   500,000$             -$                     500,000$                       
Admin, Permit & Legal Fees 44-847-461-001 -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               

Admin Permitting fees 44-847-461-002 -$                   20,000$               -$                     20,000$                         
Capital Outlay Reserved 44-847-499-099 -$                   13,575,000$        -$                     13,575,000$                  

legal administration 44-847-510-200 2,000$                2,000$                 -$                     2,000$                           
Engineering 44-847-510-301 68,000$              68,000$               -$                     68,000$                         

Closing Fee Grant/Loan Admin 44-847-670-001 -$                   355,190$             -$                     355,190$                       
contingency 44-847-999-010 -$                   1,357,500$          -$                     1,357,500$                    

Engineering Contingency 44-847-999-020 -$                  115,000$            -$                    115,000$                       
847: HWRF Total 70,000$              17,017,300$        -$                     17,017,300$                  

850:  UV Replacement Project
Contingency 44-850-509-900 127,500$            127,500$             -$                     127,500$                       

Legal Administration 44-850-510-200 6,000$                6,000$                 -$                     6,000$                           
Engineering Report 44-850-510-298 25,000$              22,150$               -$                     22,150$                         
Engineering Design 44-850-510-301 84,100$              86,950$               -$                     86,950$                         

UV Project Construction 44-850-510-503 1,275,000$         1,275,000$          -$                     1,275,000$                    
Construction / Admin 44-850-510-800 150,000$           150,000$            -$                    150,000$                       

850: UV Total 1,667,600$         1,667,600$          -$                     1,667,600$                    

851: Sewer Rehabilitation Revolving Fund
Preliminary Engineering Rept 44-851-223-002 10,000$              10,000$               -$                     10,000$                         

Engineering Design 44-851-223-003 -$                   61,000$               -$                     61,000$                         
Engineering Construction Admin 44-851-223-004 -$                   23,000$               -$                     23,000$                         

Engineering Construction Obs 44-851-223-005 -$                   65,000$               -$                     65,000$                         
Cap Outlay Not Yet Awarded 44-851-499-099 -$                  841,000$            -$                    841,000$                       

851: Sewer Rehab RF Total 10,000$              1,000,000$          -$                     1,000,000$                    
852:  Spring Street Sewer Project

Engineering 44-852-510-301 10,000$              10,000$               -$                     10,000$                         
Construction 44-852-510-400 -$                   108,350$             -$                     108,350$                       

Encroachment Fees 44-852-461-002 -$                  7,900$                -$                    7,900$                           
852: Spring St. Total 10,000$              126,250$             -$                     126,250$                       

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
840:  Sanitary Sewer Rehab Total 614,415$            1,131,628$          -$                     1,131,628$                    

842: Newton Dairy Total 21,000$              47,900$               -$                     47,900$                         
847: HWRF Total 70,000$              17,017,300$        -$                     17,017,300$                  

850: UV Total 1,667,600$         1,667,600$          -$                     1,667,600$                    
851: Sewer Rehab RF Total 10,000$              1,000,000$          -$                     1,000,000$                    

852: Spring St. Total 10,000$              126,250$             -$                     126,250$                       

Total Fund Expenditures 2,393,015$        20,990,678$       -$                    20,990,678$                  

RECAP Fund 44 -$                               
Total Revenues 2,393,015$        20,990,678$       -$                    20,990,678$                  

Total Expenditures 2,393,015$        20,990,678$       -$                    20,990,678$                  
Variance -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               

CIP SEWER FUND EXPENDITURES: 44

 
 



 5

Initial appropriation established as part of FY10-11 Budget; 2) Ordinance 10-56 approved on 13 Sep 
2010 in amount of $5,900 and 3) Ordinance 11-52 on 8 Aug 2011 in amount of $21,000.

Initial Ordinance 11-44 approved 25 July 2011 in amount of $10,000; Ordinance 11-55 approved 12 
September 2011; and Ordinance 11-73 approved 12 Dec 2011

852: Spring St. Sewer Replacement:

Notes:Reference:

Initial Ordinance was an unumbered ordinance approved on 9 June 2008 as budget amendment 34 to 
FY07-08 Budget in amount of $614,415; 2) 2nd Ordinance approved via unnumbered ordinance dated 25 
Aug 2008 allocating $500,000 from Rural Center Grant for sewer rehab projects; 3) 3rd Ordinance 
approved via unnumbered Ordinance on 27 Oct 2008 providing for a $1,581,000 increase as a result of 
CWMT Grant for UV System and a $415 decrease in CWMT Grant for sewer rehab; 4) 4th Ordinance 
approved Ordinance 10-51 on 9 Aug 2010 providing for the removal of the UV system from 44-840 and 
establishing it as a separate expenditure budget at 44-850 in the amount of $1,667,600; and 5) fifth 
Ordinance via Ordinance 12-18 approved on 27 Feb 2012 providing for multiple line item amendments to 
reconcile the budget to actual.

842: Newton Dairy Pump Project:

850:  UV Replacement Project:

Initial UV funding was established in 44-840; however, with funding received from CMTF, a separate 
project was established, pulling money from 44-840 and creating 44-850--See Ordinance 10-51 approved 
9 Aug 2010.

851:  Sewer Rehab Revolving Loan Fund

This grant/loan project was established first via Ordinance 10-82 on 13 Dec 2010 in the amount of 
$10,000; 2) second ordinance was approved via Ordinance 11-28 on 12 Dec 2011 in the amount of 
$1,000,000.  The loan is for $500,000 and grant for $500,000.

840:  Sanitary Sewer Rehab:  

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-32, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 23rd day of April 2012.  YES:. NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-32 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 23 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 



 6

       
Attachment A 

Ordinance 12—32 
FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment # 41 

(Reference:  CAF: 12-54; Ordinance 12-32) 
 
The purpose of this comprehensive budget amendment is to reconcile the various on-going 
projects with revenues and to establish the basis for each.  Some projects are anticipated to be 
completed by 30 June, such as 840 Sanitary Sewer Rehab and 852 Spring St.  This reconciliation 
efforts furthers helps establish a more valid baseline for FY12-13 Budget presentation. 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
 Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 



 7

ORDINANCE  12—33 
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 42 
AMENDMENTS TO THE 42: CIP POWELL BILL AND 11: POWELL BILL FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 11: Powell Bill Fund was among the several funds approved as part of the 

FY11-12 Budget approval process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council  has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the water distribution system, said fund referred to as 42: CIP Powell 
Bill Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised
Revenues Fund Balance Approp. 42-990-490-999 -$               -$                 21,600$            21,600$                         

-$              -$                -$                  -$                              
Total -$               -$                 21,600$            21,600$                         

21,600$                         
Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 40,725$        Budget Amendment Revised
Powell Bill Trans to 11: Powell Bill 42-690-561-011 -$               -$                 21,600$            21,600$                         

-$              -$                -$                  -$                              
Total -$               -$                 21,600$            21,600$                         

21,600$                         
Variance -$                 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised
Revenues From 42: CIP Powell Bill 11-980-461-042 -$               -$                 21,600.00$       21,600.00$                    

-$              -$                -$                  -$                              
Total -$               -$                 21,600.00$       21,600.00$                    

21,600.00$                    
Approved Current

Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised
Powell Bill Reserve 11-690-509-850 -$               -$                 21,600.00$       21,600.00$                    

-$              -$                -$                  -$                              
Total -$               -$                 21,600.00$       21,600.00$                    

21,600.00$                    
Variance -$                 

Ordinance 12-33

11 POWELL BILL FUND EXPENDITURES

Reference:
Council Meeting of 23 April 2012; Ordinance 12-33, CAF 12-59

Notes:

Purpose of this amendment is to reconcile Fund 42 CIP Powell Bill and transfer unbudgeted 
funds accrued to fund to Powell Bill fund.  These funds are budgeted to reserve and will lapse 
into Powell Bill fund balance at 30 June.  By virtue of the FY13 Budget process, these funds will 
be recommended for allocation for street resurfacing.

FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 42

42 CIP POWELL BILL FUND REVENUES

11 Powell Bill & 42 CIP Powell BillFUNDS:

42 CIP POWELL BILL FUND EXPENDITURES

11 POWELL BILL FUND REVENUES

 



 8

The foregoing Ordinance 12-33, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 23rd day of April 2012.  YES:. NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-33 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 23 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
         



 9

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—33 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment # 42 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-59; Ordinance 12-33) 

 
The purpose of this comprehensive budget amendment is to reconcile the various on-going 
projects with revenues and to establish the basis for each in 42: CIP Powell Bill Fund.  Two 
projects remain open:  High Street Connector and several minor street improvements required as 
a result of Hurricane Irene in Fall, 2011..  Thus, this ordinance “cleans up” the Fund.  
Additionally, one small inter-fund transfer of $21,600 is sent back to 11: Powell Bill Fund so that 
it might revert to its fund balance and be re-appropriated in FY13 for street resurfacing in 
10:571. 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 

Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
  Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 10

ORDINANCE  12—34 
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 43 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE 41: CIP GENERAL; 10: GENERAL AND  
51: ELMWOOD CEMETERY FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 10: General Fund and 51: Elmwood Cemetery Fund were among the several 

funds approved as part of the FY11-12 Budget approval process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council  has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the water distribution system, said fund referred to as 41: CIP General 
Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance being more fully articulated in Attachment A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance and its subparts “A” and “B” be approved and said Ordinance 
shall be effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budget Budget Amendment Revised

627: Beacon Light
Hud Reimbursement 41-411-458-198 7,500$                399,900$             -$                     399,900$                       

NC Sales Tax Refund 41-411-411-035 -$                  3,000$                (1,998)$                1,002$                          
Investments 41-411-444-010 -$                  8,500$                429$                    8,929$                          

627:  Beacon Total 7,500$                411,400$             (1,569)$                409,831$                       
628: Embassy

From General Fund 41-411-461-025 1,533,210$         1,533,210$          -$                     1,533,210$                    
Investments 41-411-444-010 160,649$           160,649$            160,649$                      

Rental Revenue 41-411-456-500 26,207$              26,207$               -$                     26,207$                         
NC Sales Tax Refund 41-411-411-035 74,254$             74,254$              74,254$                        

628: Embassy Total 1,794,320$         1,794,320$          -$                     1,794,320$                    
645: Ops Center

NC Sales Tax Refund 41-411-410-035 16,000$              16,000$               (125)$                   15,875$                         
Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities 41-411-461-071 24,000$             24,000$              -$                     24,000$                        

645: Ops Cter Total 40,000$              40,000$               (125)$                   39,875$                         
Miscellaneous Revenues

Private Donation Elmwood II 41-411-455-061 -$                   -$                     550$                    550$                              
Sale of Assets 41-411-457-000 -$                   -$                     125$                    125$                              

Transfer From Gen F Cemetery 41-411-461022 -$                  -$                    820$                    820$                             
Misc Total -$                   -$                     1,495$                 1,495$                           

TOTAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY
627:  Beacon Total 7,500$                411,400$             (1,569)$                409,831$                       

628: Embassy Total 1,794,320$        1,794,320$         -$                     1,794,320$                   
Misc Total -$                   -$                     1,495$                 1,495$                           

645: Ops Cter Total 40,000$             40,000$              (125)$                   39,875$                        
Total Fund Revenues 1,841,820$        2,245,720$         (199)$                   2,245,521$                   

PART "A"

Ordinance 12-34

FUNDS:
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 43

CIP GENERAL FUND REVENUES: 41

41: CIP General; 10: General & 51

 
 
 



 11

Original Current
Department Line Item Code Budgget Budget Amendment Revised

627: Beacon Light
Contracted Services 41-627-504-500 -$                   399,900$             -$                     399,900$                       

Trans to 10: General Fund 41-627-561-010 -$                  -$                    2,378$                 2,378$                          
Professional Services 41-627-500-400 7,500$               11,500$              (3,947)$                7,553$                          

627: Beacon Total 7,500$                411,400$             (1,569)$                409,831$                       
628:  Embassy

All expenditures all codes 1,794,320$        1,794,320$         -$                     1,794,320$                   
628: Embassy Total 1,794,320$         1,794,320$          -$                     1,794,320$                    

645: Ops Center
Trans to 10: General Fund 41-645-561-010 -$                   -$                     125$                    125$                              

Capital Outlay Repair 41-645-507-300 40,000$             40,000$              (125)$                   39,875$                        
645: Ops Cter Total 40,000$              40,000$               (125)$                   39,875$                         

660: Nondepartmental
Trans to 50: Elmwood Cem 41-660-561-051 -$                   -$                     550$                    550$                              

Trans to 10: General Fund 41-660-561-010 -$                  -$                    945$                    945$                             
660: NonDep Total -$                   -$                     1,495$                 1,495$                           

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
627: Beacon Total 7,500$                411,400$             (1,569)$                409,831$                       

628: Embassy Total 1,794,320$         1,794,320$          -$                     1,794,320$                    
645: Ops Cter Total 40,000$              40,000$               (125)$                   39,875$                         
660: NonDep Total -$                  -$                    1,495$                 1,495$                          

Total Fund Expenditures 1,841,820$        2,245,720$         (199)$                   2,245,521$                   

RECAP Fund 41 -$                               
Total Revenues 1,841,820$        2,245,720$         (199)$                   2,245,521$                   

Total Expenditures 1,841,820$        2,245,720$         (199)$                   2,245,521$                   
Variance -$                   -$                     -$                     -$                               

Interfund Transfers:
1)  The interfund transfer to the General Fund equals $3,323 and is comprised of $2,378 from 627-561-
010 and $945 from 660-561-010.   2)   The interfund transfer to Elmwood Cemetery fund is $550 found 
in 660-561-051

This project is in total balance and was completed in the mid-2000's; however, the project has remained 
on the books.  The purpose of this amendment is to officially close it out.

There are no active projects in Fund 41: CIP General.  This budget reconciliation ordiance will have the 
effect of closing out the three projects remaining on the books.

Active Projects

Notes:Reference:

1) Project established on 8 Nov 2010 via Ordinance 10-75, appropriating $7,500 for professional 
services.   2)  Second ordinance approved on23 May 2011 via Ordinance 11-02 appropriating $403,900.  
Project was completed in Fall, 2011.  This amendment reconciles the project budget to actual so it can 
be closed out.

628:  Embassy

645 Ops Center
This project was established on 14 Sep 2009 via Ordinance 09-64.  The project is completed and the 
purpose of this amendment is to reconcile its expenses and revenues to actual and close out the project.

Miscellaneous Revenues

There are three unbudgeted revenue sources that have not been aligned to any projects.  The purpose 
of this amendment is to budget the revenues and to approproate them to the Elmwood and General 
funds.

41: CIP GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES:

827: Beacon Light

 



 12

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Revenues Trans from 41: CIP General 10-980-461-041 -$                   -$                     3,323$                 3,323$                           
-$                  -$                    -$                     -$                              

Total -$                   -$                     3,323$                 3,323$                           
3,323$                           

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 40,725$             Budget Amendment Revised

Streets MR A;uto Garage 10-570-501-705 19,500$              19,500$               3,323$                 22,823$                         
-$                  -$                    -$                     -$                              

Total 19,500$              19,500$               3,323$                 22,823$                         
22,823$                         

Variance -$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Revenues Trans from 41: CIP General 51-980-461-041 -$                   -$                     550.00$               550.00$                         
-$                  -$                    -$                     -$                              

Total -$                   -$                     550.00$               550.00$                         
51 ELMWOOD CEMETERY FUND EXPENDITURES 550.00$                         

Department Line Item Code Approved Current
1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Elmwood Cemetery 51-855-509-800 51-855-509-800 -$                   -$                     550.00$               550.00$                         
-$                  -$                    -$                     -$                              

Total -$                   -$                     550.00$               550.00$                         
550.00$                         

Variance -$                    

PART "B"

51: Elmwood Fund Transfer from 41: CIP moves dedicated revenue for Elmwood Cemetery to trust balance.
Reference: Notes:

10: General Fund: Transfer from 41: CIP General to help replinish maintenance and repair code in 10-570

51 ELMWOOD CEMETERY FUND REVENUES

10 GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

Ordinance 12-34

FUNDS: 10:  GENERAL & 51: ELMWOOD
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 43

10 GENERAL FUND REVENUES

 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-34, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 23rd day of April 2012.  YES:. NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

 
___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-34 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 



 13

Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
         

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—34 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment # 43 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-60; Ordinance 12-34) 

 
The purpose of this comprehensive budget amendment is to reconcile the various on-going 
projects with revenues and to establish the basis for each in 41: CIP General Fund.  All projects 
are completed, with some being completed many years ago.  Thus, this ordinance “cleans up” the 
Fund.  Additionally, two small inter-fund transfers are made to the General and Elmwood funds 
in order to clear the Fund of any unallocated funds. 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
 Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 14

O R D I N A N C E  12—31 
 
Council Member **  introduced the following Ordinance that was seconded by Council Member 
** and read: 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT # 44 
AMENDMENTS TO THE REGIONAL WATER FUND AND 

THE 2011 REVENUE REFUNDING BOND ACCOUNT 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson, on 13 June 2011, adopted the FY 11-12 
Municipal Operating and Capital Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

budget from time-to-time, and the reason for FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #44 is more 
fully articulated in Attachment A to this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City . 

 
 



 15

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

TF Regional Water 12-200-461064 1,147,001$      1,147,001$     3,004$          1,150,005$      
TF Sewer Fund 12-200-461031 907,397$         907,397$        -$             907,397$        
TF Water Fund 12-200-461064 998,561$         998,561$        -$             998,561$        
TF General Fund 12-200-461070 949,720$         949,720$        -$             949,720$        
Bond Proceeds 12-200-444031 -$                329,230$        7,500$          336,730$        

Total 4,002,679$      4,331,909$     10,504$        4,342,413$      
4,342,413$      

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Professional Services 12-110-508200 -$                329,230$        18,933$        348,163$        
Admin Fees - Bonds 12-110-508320 4,637$            4,637$           (4,637)$         -$               
Police Dept Princ 12-110-508221 350,000$         350,000$        -$             350,000$        
Aquatics Principal 12-110-508321 264,270$         264,270$        -$             264,270$        
2001 Rev Bonds Prin 12-110-508213 790,003$         790,003$        (790,003)$     -$               
Overhead Stor Princ 12-110-508214 42,100$          42,100$         -$             42,100$          
2" Water Line Princ 12-110-508215 295,770$         295,770$        -$             295,770$        
Sanitary Sewer Princ 12-110-508216 137,390$         137,390$        3$                137,393$        
Ruin Cr Outfall Princ 12-110-508217 115,290$         115,290$        -$             115,290$        
NVHS Sewer Princ 12-110-508218 62,225$          62,225$         1$                62,226$          
Warren Co Line Princ 12-110-508219 2,200$            2,200$           -$             2,200$            
Reg Loopline Princ 12-110-508220 861,000$         861,000$        3,000$          864,000$        
Reg Raw Water Princ 12-110-508221 143,815$         143,815$        -$             143,815$        
Police Dept Interest 12-110-508311 132,370$         132,370$        -$             132,370$        
Aquatics Interest 12-110-508312 72,150$          72,150$         -$             72,150$          
2001 Rev Bonds Inter 12-110-508313 509,689$         509,689$        (87,493)$       422,196$        
Overhead Stor Inter 12-110-508314 8,665$            8,665$           -$             8,665$            
2" Water Line Inter 12-110-508315 7,550$            7,550$           -$             7,550$            
Sanitary Sewer Inter 12-110-508316 13,950$          13,950$         -$             13,950$          
Ruin Cr Outfall Int 12-110-508317 23,725$          23,725$         -$             23,725$          
NVHS Sewer Interest 12-110-508318 15,530$          15,530$         -$             15,530$          
Warren Co Line Inter 12-110-508319 8,160$            8,160$           -$             8,160$            
Reg Loopline Inter 12-110-508320 94,355$          94,355$         -$             94,355$          
Reg Raw Water Inter 12-110-50832 47,835$          47,835$         -$             47,835$          
2011 Rev Bonds Prin 12-112-508100 -$                -$               730,000$      730,000$        
2011 Rev Bonds Int 12-112-508200 -$                -$               140,700$      140,700$        

-$                -$               -$             -$               

Total 4,002,679$      4,331,909$     10,504$        4,342,413$      
4,342,413.00$ 

variance -$             

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Ordinance 12-31
FY 11-12 Budget Amendment #44Fund: Debt Service

Reference: Notes:
Ord 12-31 & CAF 12-55 on 23 April 2012 Amend original budget for Debt Service Fund to correct debt service payment for 

Regional Water ($3,004).  The Regional Water Fund budget was amended by an 
Interdepartmental Transfer - but the Debt Service Fund was never amended for the 
additional revenue and expenditure.  Additionally, to reduce the budget for the 2001 
bonds and budget payment for the 2011 bonds as a result of the August 2011 
bond refunding.  

 
 
 
 



 16

The foregoing Ordinance 12-31, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 23rd  day of April 2012:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 12-55 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12—31 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 23 April 2012 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of April 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 17

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—13 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment 44 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-55;  Ordinance 12-31) 

 
Debt Service Fund 
 
Amendment #44 adjusts the original budget for the Debt Service Fund for two purposes, the first 
being to correct the Transfer from the Regional Water Fund and the corresponding expenditure 
for that transfer, both of which are for a portion of the debt attributable to the Regional Water 
Fund.  This transfer and expenditure were understated in the original Budget Ordinance.  
Additionally, to correct the accounts related to the Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011, 
which were issued in August of 2011 and which “replaced” the 2001 Revenue Bonds.  
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



 18

ORDINANCE  12—35 
 

FY 2011-2012 BUDGET AMENDMENT #45 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE 70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES AND  
79: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES RATE STABLIZATION FUNDS 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council) adopted its FY11-12 Operating 

Budget on 13 June 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council  has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the water distribution and sewer treatment and collection systems, said 
fund referred to as 70: Capital Reserve Utilities Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council created 79: Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization Fund in 2012 in order to 

reserve certain funds for rate stabilization associated with anticipated debt service 
requirements for improvements at the Kerr Lake Regional Water Treatment Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council appropriated $112,800 for future costs associated with the planned 

improvements to the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility (HWRF) as part of its FY11-
12 Budget process, said funds being transferred from 31: Sewer Fund to 70: Capital 
Reserve Rate Stabilization Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is felt it more appropriate to reserve and track funds allocated for the HWRF 

project to be housed in the 79: Rate Stabilization Fund, said amendment being more fully 
described in Attachment A to this Ordinance. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 



 19

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

-$               -$                 -$                  -$                               
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total -$               -$                 -$                  -$                               
-$                               

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1 Jul 11 Budget Amendment Revised

NonDepartmental Trans to 79: Rate Stabilization 70-660-561-079 -$               -$                 112,800$          112,800$                       
Cap Res Utilities to Fund Balance 70-865-509-800 221,540$      221,540$        (112,800)$        108,740$                      

Total 221,540$       221,540$         -$                  221,540$                       
221,540$                       

Variance -$                 

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

Revenues Trans from 70: CR Utilities 79-652-461-070 -$               -$                 112,800.00$     112,800.00$                  
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total -$               -$                 112,800.00$     112,800.00$                  
112,800.00$                  

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-11 Budget Amendment Revised

HWRF Upgrade Rate Stabilization 79-652-535-750 -$               -$                 112,800.00$     112,800.00$                  
-$              -$                -$                  -$                              

Total -$               -$                 112,800.00$     112,800.00$                  
112,800.00$                  

Variance -$                 

Ordinance 12-35

79 CAPITAL RESERVE RATE STABILIZATION FUND EXPENDITURES

Reference:
Council Meeting, 23 Apr 2012; Ordinance 12-35

Notes:
Purpose of this amendment is to transfer funds allocated for Sewer Plant upgrades from Capital 
reserve Utilities to Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization.  The Capital Reserve Utlities fund provides 
for unpsecified projects while funds being raised for the sewer plant upgrade are to be used 
specifically for rate stablization.  Moving funds this FY and using this new account from this point 
forward will ensure the funds are properly set aside and tracked.

FY 11-12 Budget Amendment # 45

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND REVENUES

70: Capital Reserve Utilities and                                  
79:Capital Reserve Rate Stabilization 

FUNDS:

70 CAPITAL RESERVE UTLITIES FUND EXPENDITURES

79 CAPITAL RESERVE RATE STABILIZATION FUND REVENUES

 
 
 
The foregoing Ordinance 12-35, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 23rd day of April 2012.  YES:. NO:.   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. *** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 20

__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 12-35 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 April 2012 (Minute Book 42, p.***). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of *** 2012. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
         

Attachment A 
Ordinance 12—35 

FY 11-12 Budget Ordinance Amendment # 45 
(Reference:  CAF: 12-55; Ordinance 12-35) 

 
The purpose of this Amendment is to transfer the $112,800 appropriated by Council during its 
FY11-12 Budget processfor the HWRF upgrade project from the general utilities reserve fund to 
the rate stabilization fund. (See: 31-822-509-706 and 70:700-461-031)  The latter now provides 
for a project specific identification for collection of said funds.  The purpose of these funds is to 
help mitigate future rate increases needed to fund debt service associated with this project.  
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by: _______________________________  Date: _______________________ 
 Judith Woods, Accounting Supervisor 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 

 



 

 1

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

16 April 2012 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  12-59 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-38, Awarding a Contract with ECS 
Carolinas, LLP Relative to Subsurface Exploration and Geotechnical Engineering 
Services Needed in Conjunction with Improvements at the Henderson Water 
Reclamation Facility. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 5: Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 

Systems. 
 

  KSO   8: rovide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to  
     Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory Authorities. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Consideration of Approval of Resolution 12-38, Awarding a Contract with ECS Carolinas, 

LLP Relative to Subsurface Exploration and Geotechnical Engineering Services Needed in 
Conjunction with Improvements at the Henderson Water Reclamation Facility. 
 

Executive Summary 
 
Engineering design has been ongoing for improvements to the Henderson Water Reclamation 
Facility.  Included in the proposed budget for the project, but not inclusive of McGill’s contract, 
is subservice exploration and Geotechnical Engineering work.  City policy exempts projects 
from the Mini-Brooks Act if the fee is considered to be less than $30,000.  Proposals from three 
different firms were received to perform, all of which are reputable firms, and of which have 
performed work for the city before.   
 
Prices are as follows: 
  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 23 Apr. Short Reg. Meeting 



 

 2

 1. ECS Carolinas, LLP $  9,650 (includes $850 for locate services) 
 2. Terracon $10,200 
  3. S&ME $16,000  
 
Based on the proposals received, it is recommended that the contract be awarded to ECS 
Carolinas, LLP. 
 
There is an existing account set up in the HWRF Project budget to perform this work. 
 
 

1.  Resolution 12-38 
 



 

 3

 

R E S O L U T I O N   12-38 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH ECS CAROLINAS, LLP TO PERFORM SUBSURFACE 

EXPLORATION AND GEOTECHNICLA ENGINEERING SERVICES 
RELATIVE TO PLANNING AND DESIGN FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE 

HENDERSON WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2011 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and KSO 5:  To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant 
Infrastructure Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction or replacement of 
wastewater collection systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council authorized submission of an application on 14 February 2011 via 

Resolution 11-12, requesting State loan and/or grant assistance from the State Revolving 
Fund Grant/Loan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the design work is ongoing for the improvements to the HWRF Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsurface exploration and geotechnical work is required to complete the design 

process; and 
 
WHEREAS, proposals have been received to perform this work, and it is recommended that 

ECS Carolina, LLP be contracted to perform this work. 
  
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North 

Carolina, that it does hereby authorize the execution of an agreement for Subsurface 
Exploration and Geotechnical Engineering with ECS Carolinas, LLP and being more 
fully articulated in Attachment “A” to this Resolution. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the Agreement and 

other applicable documents as necessary to proceed with this work. 
 
 
 



 

 4

The foregoing Resolution 12-38, upon motion of Council Member ________________ and 
second by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote 
received the following votes and was ______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2011:  
YES:      . NO:      .   ABSTAIN:       .     ABSENT:  . 

 
 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, pp. **. 
 
Reference: Resolution 11-12 

 



 

 5

 



 

 6



 

 7

 
 
 



 

 8

 
 
 



 

 9

 
 
 



 

 10

 

 
 



 

 11

 
 
 



 

 12

 

 
 



 

 13

 



  

                   

                Last Updated: 4/19/2012 3:42 PM 

Date Time Event Location 

May 1st 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers 

May 2nd 8:00 AM Clean up Henderson City Operations Center 

May 7th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

May 8th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

May 14th  5:00 PM Library Board of Trustees H. Leslie Perry Memorial Library 

May 14th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers 

May 17th  7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

May 17th 6:00 PM  City Council Budget Work Session #1 City Council Chambers 

May 21st 6:00 PM  City Council Budget Work Session #2 City Council Chambers 

May 22nd  6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #3 City Council Chambers 

May 24th 6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #4 City Council Chambers 

May 25th 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance 911 Advisory Board 
Emergency Operations 

Center 

May 28th 
 

City Hall Closed 
Memorial Day Happy Memorial Day

May 29th 6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #5 City Council Chambers 

May 31st 6:00 PM City Council Budget Work Session #6 City Council Chambers 

June 4th 6:00 PM 
City Council Budget Work Session #7 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

June 4th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

June 5th 3:30 PM Henderson Zoning Board of Adjustment City Council Chambers 

June 5th 6:00 PM 
City Council Budget Work Session #8 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

June 6th  8:00 AM Clean up Henderson City Operations Center 

June 7th 6:00 PM 
City Council Budget Work Session #9 

(If Needed) 
City Council Chambers 

June 11th 9:30 AM KLRWS Advisory Board Meeting City Hall Conference Room  

June 11th 6:00 PM Regular City Council Meeting City Council Chambers 

June 12th 3:00 PM Henderson Appearance Committee City Council Chambers 

Meetings and Events Calendar 

































 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION  12‐08 

 
A PROCLAMATION of the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Henderson, North Carolina, proclaiming April as 

Child Abuse Month 
 

WHEREAS,  child  abuse  and  neglect  is  a  community  problem  affecting  the  current  and 

future quality of life of a community; and 

WHEREAS,  mistreatment  occurs  when  people  find  themselves  in  stressful  situations 

without community resources, and do not know how to cope; and 

WHEREAS, child abuse and neglect can be prevented by making sure each family has the 

support needed to raise their children in a healthy environment; and 

 WHEREAS,  child  abuse  and  neglect  have  been  proven  to  increase  the  likelihood  of 

criminal behavior, substance abuse, and health problems such as obesity; and  

WHEREAS, all  citizens  should  support  families  in providing  safe, nurturing environments 

for children; and  

WHEREAS, effective child abuse prevention programs succeed due to partnerships among 

social  service  agencies,  schools,  faith  communities,  civic  organizations,  law 

enforcement and the business community.  

NOW  THEREFORE,  by  virtue  of  the  authority  vested  in me  as Mayor  and  on  behalf  of 

Henderson’s  City  Council  and  its  citizens,  I  proclaim  April  2012  as  Child  Abuse 

Prevention  Month  and  call  upon  all  citizens,  community  agencies,  faith  groups, 

medical  facilities,  elected  leaders  and  businesses  to  increase  their  participation  in 

efforts  to  support  families,  thereby  decreasing  child  abuse  and  strengthening  the 

communities in which we live.    

 

________________________________ 
Attest:                  James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

PROCLAMATION  12‐10 
A PROCLAMATION of the Mayor and City Council of the 

City of Henderson, North Carolina, honoring 
Public Health Month – April 2012 

 
WHEREAS, we hereby recognize and acknowledge public health’s 132 years of service to the residents of North 

Carolina and specifically Henderson; and 

WHEREAS, North Carolina’s public health system is a critical component of the state’s emergency response to natural 

and man‐made disasters and widespread disease outbreaks in North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, public health measures control and eliminate infectious diseases, improve environmental sanitation, and 

promote healthy lifestyle practices have improved the health status and life expectancy for North Carolina residents; 

and 

WHEREAS, public health plays a critical role in eliminating health inequities and preventing chronic diseases and 

injuries, resulting in improved productivity and decreased health care costs for all North Carolinians; and 

WHEREAS, a continued focus on promoting public health programs has resulted in more than an 11 percent decline 

in infant mortality, the lowest rate in the state’s history, a 29 percent decline in age‐adjusted heart disease death 

rates since 2000 and more than a 38 percent decline in teen pregnancy since 2000; and 

WHEREAS, the Healthy North Carolina 2020 Health Objectives represent a 10‐year plan to improve the health of all 

North Carolinians by working to promote access to preventive and needed health services; foster positive and 

supportive living and working conditions in our communities; and support individuals in developing the capacities 

and skills to achieve healthy living; and 

WHEREAS, communities, employers, hospitals and health care providers, individuals and families, insurers, legislators 

and policy makers, schools and child care facilities must work together to identify and develop innovative solutions to 

health problems facing the people of North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the Granville‐Vance District Health Department has led a collaborative effort with community partners to 

create a Community Health Assessment focused on the 2020 Health Objectives that identifies health priorities and 

will be published in April 2012. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, JAMES D. O’GEARY, Mayor of the City of Henderson, North Carolina, do hereby proclaim April 

2012 as Public Health Month and urge our citizens to recognize that public health is working to ensure all people 

living in Henderson are protected from health threats. 

________________________________ 
Attest:                  James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
  
____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



 

26 March 2012 Work Session Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

  
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Henderson City Council Work Session 

Monday, 23 April 2012 Immediately Following Regular Session 
R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 

134 Rose Avenue 
Henderson, North Carolina 

 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 
 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Sr. 
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 
Councilmember Brenda G. Peace—Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Lonnie Davis, Jr. 
Councilmember George M. Daye 

 
City Officials 
 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. REGULAR WORK SESSION  
 

a)   There are no items for this Work Session 
 

V.     ADJOURNMENT 


	#12 SRM 23 Apr 2012
	#12 9 Apr 12 reg meeting
	12-16 Wek of the Young Child
	CM 12-06- CDBG Infrastructure Hook Up Grant Public Hearing postponement Apr 2012
	CAF 12-56 AUDIT CONTRACT 11-12
	CAF 12-12 Tax releases-refunds March 2011 - June 2011
	CAF 12-30 Hazard Mitigation R 12-11
	CAF 12-A-28 Birch Circle Water Main Project R 12-37
	CAF 12-A-33 Bed and Breakfast ORD 12-A-19 and 12-B-19
	CAF 12-55  ordinance 12-31  Bond Closeout  ORD 12-32   Fund 44 ORD 12-33 Fund 42
	CAF 12-59 Geotechnical Eng Serv re HWRF Improvements R 12-38
	REFERENCE Meetings and Event
	March 2012 Code Compliance
	12-08  Child Abuse Month
	12-10 Public HEalth Month

